
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Agenda 
 
Wednesday, 15 January 2020 
7.30 pm,  
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact: John Bardens (02083149976) 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio 
recorded and/or filmed. 
 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2019 

 
3 - 6 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

7 - 10 

3.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

4.   Primary care development 
 

11 - 32 

5.   NHS charges for overseas visitors 
To follow 

 

6.   Select Committee work programme 
 

33 - 58 

7.   Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
Members 

 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting 
to be held on Wednesday, 15 January 2020.  
 
Kim Wright, Chief Executive 

Tuesday, 7 January 2020 
 
  

Councillor John Muldoon (Chair)  

Councillor Coral Howard (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Tauseef Anwar  

Councillor Peter Bernards  

Councillor Colin Elliott  

Councillor Aisling Gallagher  

Councillor Octavia Holland  

Councillor Olurotimi Ogunbadewa  

Councillor Jacq Paschoud  

Councillor Kim Powell  

Councillor Bill Brown (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Sakina Sheikh (ex-Officio)  
  

   



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES 
SELECT COMMITTEE 

Monday, 2 December 2019 at 7.30 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors John Muldoon (Chair), Coral Howard (Vice-Chair), 
Tauseef Anwar, Peter Bernards, Colin Elliott, Aisling Gallagher, Octavia Holland, 
Olurotimi Ogunbadewa, Jacq Paschoud and Kim Powell 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Nigel Bowness (Healthwatch Lewisham), Stephanie Fleck (Principal 
Lawyer), Jim Lusby (Director of Strategy, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust), John 
Bardens (Scrutiny Manager) and Professor Michael Preston-Shoot (Independent Chair, 
Lewisham Safeguarding Adults Board).  
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 October 2019 

 
Resolved: the minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a true record. 
 

2. Minutes of the joint meeting with Children and Young People Select 
Committee 
 
Resolved: the minutes of the meeting were agreed as a true record. 
 

3. Declarations of interest 
 
There were none. 

 
4. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 

 
The committee noted the response from the Health and Wellbeing Board to its 
referral on BAME mental health inequalities. The committee agreed to have an 
update in 6 months. 
 
The committee noted the response from Mayor and Cabinet to its referral on the 
recommissioning of building-based day services for older adults. The committee 
agreed to have an update in 6 months. 
 
Resolved: the responses were noted. 
 

5. Lewisham Safeguarding Adults Board – Annual Report 2018-19 & Strategic 
Business Plan 2019-20 
 
Professor Michael Preston-Shoot (Independent Chair, LSAB) introduced the 
report. There was a discussion and the following key points were noted: 
 
5.1 It was noted that the number of safeguarding cases in Lewisham is lower than 

elsewhere in London. 

5.2 The number of safeguarding cases varies across London. The key points are 
whether all organisations and services in Lewisham that should be are 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 
 

2 

notifying adult safeguarding of concerns, and whether the triaging that takes 
place after this is effective.  

5.3 A recent independent audit of Lewisham’s triage process concluded that it was 
one of the best. The independent Chair has also been impressed by the 
standard of section 42 enquiries carried out by social workers. 

5.4 It is difficult to assess whether the number of adult safeguarding notifications of 
concern is more or less than it should be. Lewisham has significant challenges 
around disability, poverty and other forms of social exclusion, but it is difficult 
to gather evidence of cases that should have been notified 

5.5 The impact of cuts and funding reductions on adult safeguarding was 
discussed and it was noted that austerity has had an impact on frontline 
services. The independent auditor of Lewisham’s adult safeguarding process 
was satisfied, however, that the Council had not added any additional access 
criteria in response to workload pressures. 

5.6 The committee discussed adult safeguarding in relation to “county lines” drug 
trafficking and the “cuckooing” of vulnerable people’s homes for drug dealing.  

5.7 It was noted that while “county lines” drug trafficking is often a child 
safeguarding issue, the safeguarding adults board must hold agencies to 
account for what they are doing when children involved reach the age of 18 
and may be trying to escape. The independent Chair noted that it is an issue 
that Lewisham and other London boroughs need get up to speed on quickly.  

5.8 The committee asked about the distribution of information explaining who to 
get in touch with if you have an adult safeguarding concern. It was noted that 
this information should be available in every public location in Lewisham, as 
well as information about the different types of abuse and neglect. 

5.9 In relation to unregistered providers, the safeguarding adults board continues 
to seek reassurances that adult social care and partner agencies are aware of 
the issue and are making sure, as far as regulations allow, that the quality of 
accommodation is adequate.   

 
Resolved: the committee thanked the independent Chair for his evidence, noted 
the report, and agreed to refer its views to Mayor and Cabinet. 
 

6. Lewisham hospital systems resilience 
 
Jim Lusby (Director of Strategy, LGT) introduced the report. There was a 
discussion and the following key points were noted: 
 
6.1 It was noted that breaches of the working time directive among nursing staff is 

not monitored as systematically as other staffing groups. The Trust is however 
very aware of the pressure on nursing staff and therapists. 

6.2 The committee noted that the uptake of the flu jab by Trust staff was very low – 
50% compared with a target of 75%. The Trust has been more proactive about 
explaining the importance of the flu jab, and debunking myths, and is focussed 
on creating as many ways as possible for staff to access the jab. 

6.3 The committee asked about the number of people attending A&E with mental 
health problems. The Trust noted that it is working with the local mental health 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

3 

trust, SLaM, to pilot a change in the triage process this winter, by bringing the 
psychiatric liaison nurse up to the point of triage.  

6.4 The committee noted the increase in staff sickness levels and asked if the 
Trust was monitoring the relation between this and increasing levels of attacks 
on staff. The Trust agreed to share the relevant data. 

 
Resolved: the committee noted the report. 
 

7. Select Committee work programme 
 
The Scrutiny Manager introduced the report and the following was noted: 
 
7.1 The committee asked for an annual update on the data published by the South 

London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust on meeting the public sector 
equality duty.  

7.2 The committee asked for an update on health visitors. The scrutiny manager 
agreed to share the relevant information from the previous meeting. 

 
Resolved: the committee agreed the work programme.  
 

8. Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 
 
The committee agreed to refer its views on item 5 (adult safeguarding) to Mayor 
and Cabinet in the following terms: 

 
The committee noted the guidance on the last page of the Lewisham 
Safeguarding Adults Board’s (LSAB) annual report about how to report a 
suspected safeguarding issue, and expressed concern that not enough 
publicity is being given to this information. The committee agreed to ask the 
Mayor and Cabinet to explain what steps are being taken to ensure that this 
information is appearing in every public building in the borough, starting with 
Laurence House and the Civic Suite, in order to encourage the wider public to 
get in touch and report safeguarding concerns. 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Date: 15th January 2020 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive (Director of Law) 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 8



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 9



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

9. Report author and contact 

9.1. Kath Nicholson, Director of Law, Kath.Nicholson@lewisham.gov.uk, 0208 31 47648 

Page 10

mailto:Kath.Nicholson@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

 

 

Report title: Primary care development update 

Date: 15 January 2020 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: John Bardens, Scrutiny Manager 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of the attached paper is to provide the Healthier Communities Select 
Committee with a comprehensive update on Primary Care developments in 
Lewisham, specifically in regard to GP commissioned services. 

 Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are 
recommended to note the report.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

1. Summary 

1.1. The purpose of the attached paper is to provide the Healthier Communities Select 
Committee with a comprehensive update on Primary Care developments in Lewisham, 
specifically in regard to GP commissioned services.  

1.2. The paper seeks to continue the close and positive working relationship between the 
Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the Committee and provides 
updates on key developments in the national landscape and local commissioning 
arrangements since the last overarching update paper presented in February 2017.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are recommended to note 
the report.  

3. Policy Context 

3.1. The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2022 outlines the Council’s vision to deliver for 
residents over the next four years and includes the following priority relevant to this 
item: Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - Ensuring everyone 
receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need. 

4. Financial implications  

4.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. 

5. Legal implications 

5.1. There are no direct legal implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. 

6. Equalities implications 

6.1. Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

6.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

7. Climate change and environmental implications 

7.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. 

8. Crime and disorder implications 

8.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 

Page 12

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

the recommendations in this report. 

9. Health and wellbeing implications  

9.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendations in this report. 

10. Report contact 

10.1. John Bardens, Scrutiny Manager, john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk 020 8314 9976 

 

Page 13

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Report: NHS Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group: 

Primary Care Development Update 

Ward: All Item No.  

From: NHS Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group 

Class: N/A Date: 15th January 2020 

1. Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Healthier Communities Select Committee with a 
comprehensive update on Primary Care developments in Lewisham, specifically in regard 
to GP commissioned services. 

1.2 The paper seeks to continue the close and positive working relationship between the 
Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the Committee and provides updates 
on key developments in the national landscape and local commissioning arrangements 
since the last overarching update paper presented in February 2017. 

 

2. Recommendation 

2.1 Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are recommended to note the 
report. 

 

3. Primary Care Commissioning  

3.1 Following a successful application to NHS England, on the 1st April 2017, Lewisham CCG 
assumed full delegated responsibility (Level 3) for the commissioning, procurement, 
management and monitoring of primary medical services contracts whilst NHS England 
legally retained liability for the performance of primary medical care commissioning. 

3.2 The functions included as part of fully delegated commissioning arrangements include: 

 General Medical Services (GMS), Personal Medical Services (PMS) and Alternative 
Provider Medical Services (APMS) contracts (including the design of PMS and APMS 
contracts, monitoring of contracts, taking contractual action such as issuing 
breech/remedial notices and removing a contract) 

 Newly designed enhanced services 

 Design of local incentives schemes as an alternative to Quality Outcomes Framework 
(QOF) 

 The ability to establish new GP practices in an area 

 Approving practice mergers and 

 Making decisions on ‘discretionary’ payments (e.g. returner/retainer schemes). 

3.3 NHS England remain accountable for outcomes and therefore continues its assurance role 
of CCGs to ensure responsibilities are being adequately discharged and well managed to 
yield the intended outcomes. 

  

Page 15



   

2 | P a g e  

 

3.4 Responsibilities that are retained by NHS England include: 

 Holding the medical performers’ list 

 Performers’ appraisal and revalidation 

 Pay and rations 

 Complaints 

 Commissioning of dental, community pharmacy and eye health services 

3.5 To support the move to fully delegated commissioning, the following new local governance 
arrangements were enacted in advance of the CCG assuming responsibility on the 1st April 
2017;  

(i) Changed composition of the Governing Body to include a third Lay Member; 

(ii) Enhanced role of the Lay Member, who leads on audit, remuneration and conflicts of 
interest matters (deputy chair) to become the Conflicts of Interest Guardian;  

(iii) Amendment of both the CCG Conflicts of Interest and Procurement Polices to reflect 
national guidance (Procurement Policy: http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-
us/Who-we- 
are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.2%20Appendix%20II%20Procure 

ment%20Policy%20Draft.pdf and Conflict of Interest Policy: 
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-
are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.1%20LCCG%20COI%20Policy.pdf) 

(iv) Formation of the Lewisham Primary Care Commissioning Committee (meeting held 
in public) to oversee level 3 delegated commissioning responsibilities. 

 

4. General Practice landscape 

4.1 Lewisham GP Practices 

4.1.1 There are currently 35 GP practices in Lewisham providing primary care services out of 39 
sites.  

4.1.2 This comprises of a mixture of 3 small (3,000-5,000 patients), 16 medium (5,000-10,000 
patients) and 16 larger practices (10,000+ patients). 

4.1.3 There are also practices who are working together in larger groups including the Lewisham 
Care Partnership “super partnership” (St Johns Medical Centre, Modern Hill Surgery, 
Honor Oak Group Practice, Belmont Hill Surgery, Hilly Fields Medial Centre, Brockley 
Road Medical Centre) and the Lewisham division of Modality (Jenner Health Centre, South 
Lewisham Group Practice, Bellingham Green Surgery). 

4.1.4 A super-partnership is formed by a number of individual practices merging into a single 
businesses unit, covering multiple sites. A fully integrated super-partnership will operate in 
much the same way as a regular partnership, but generally at a much larger scale. 
Operational and administrative processes can be standardised to reduce workload and 
save money, and back office functions such as HR and payroll can be centralised. Staff, 
whether clinical or operational, can also support each other across the super-partnership 
and share good practice. 

  

Page 16

http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.2%20Appendix%20II%20Procurement%20Policy%20Draft.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.2%20Appendix%20II%20Procurement%20Policy%20Draft.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.2%20Appendix%20II%20Procurement%20Policy%20Draft.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.2%20Appendix%20II%20Procurement%20Policy%20Draft.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.2%20Appendix%20II%20Procurement%20Policy%20Draft.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.1%20LCCG%20COI%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.1%20LCCG%20COI%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.1%20LCCG%20COI%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/Who-we-are/Governing%20Body%20papers/Enc%2013.1%20LCCG%20COI%20Policy.pdf


   

3 | P a g e  

 

4.1.5 The following practice mergers have been considered and approved by the Lewisham 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee in the past 12 months. 

Merging practices Effective date Description 

Sydenham Green Group Practice 
and Sydenham Surgery 

1st April 2019 Merger in support of the retirement 
of Dr Morant and sale of the 
Sydenham Surgery site  

Dr Batra’s Practice and New 
Cross Health Centre 

1st July 2019 Merger in support of the retirement 
of Dr Batra and management of 
CQC action plan following 
inspection rating of inadequate for 
Dr Batra’s Practice 

Hilly Fields Medial Centre and 
Brockley Road Medical Centre 

1st April 2020 Merger in support of the planned 
vision of the Lewisham Care 
Partnership to join all contracts and 
the end of the lease at the Brockley 
Road Medical Centre 

4.1.6 When considering practice business cases for mergers, the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee seeks assurance that appropriate patient engagement has been undertaken 
and an on-going plan is in place to continue this and also that a practice improvement plan 
has been developed to address any areas of significant variation. 

4.1.7 Full papers for all practice mergers including practice business cases and supporting plans 
can be found in the papers of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee at 
https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-work/Pages/Primary-Care-
Commissioning-Committee-.aspx 

4.2 GP Federation  

4.2.1 One Health Lewisham (OHL) is the borough wide GP Federation established in 2017 that 
has grown out of four neighbourhood GP Federations. All Lewisham GP practices are 
members of the Federation. OHL works to develop pan Lewisham ways of working, reduce 
variation, improve quality and support GP Practices. 

4.2.2 The CCG also formally commission OHL to deliver services which include the GP 
Extended Access service, an enhanced Care Home service, a population health scheme, 
Latent TB testing and a High Intensity User service (https://youtu.be/vuIAv7IOA6U ). 

4.2.3 Following a competitive procurement process, OHL have also just been awarded the 
contract to provide the Special Allocation Scheme service across South East London. This 
service is for patients who have been removed from mainstream GP services due to 
violent/aggressive behaviour. 

4.2.4 OHL were recently recognised for their work with GP practices to increase the proportion of 
diabetic patients meeting the key three treatment targets for blood pressure, cholesterol 
and blood glucose levels by winning at the Health Service Journal (HSJ) patient safety 
awards in July 2019.  

4.2.5 Lewisham patients meeting these three treatment targets increased by 4% and based on 
data from March 2019, Lewisham are now the 5th best performing CCG in London. 

4.3 Primary Care Networks 

4.3.1 The NHS Long Term Plan and GP Contract reform published in January 2019 has set the 
direction of travel for primary care over the next five years. The ambition of the NHS is to 
dissolve the divide between primary care and community health services by delivering new 
service models in which patients receive more options, better support, and properly joined-
up optimal care when they need it.   

Page 17

https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-work/Pages/Primary-Care-Commissioning-Committee-.aspx
https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-work/Pages/Primary-Care-Commissioning-Committee-.aspx
https://youtu.be/vuIAv7IOA6U


   

4 | P a g e  

 

4.3.2 A key element of this is the establishment of Primary Care Networks (PCNs) which have 
general practice at their core. PCNs have to be small enough to maintain the traditional 
strength of general practice, but large enough to provide resilience and support the 
development of integrated teams. Each PCN will serve, typically, communities of between 
30,000 and 50,000 and be geographically coherent.  

4.3.3 A PCN consists of a group of practices working together with a range of local providers, 
including across primary care, social care and the voluntary sector to offer more 
personalised, coordinated health and social care to a local population. The potential 
benefits of practices working within a PCN include:  

 Greater resilience and workload management by making the best use of shared staff, 
buildings and other resources  

 More tasks routinely directed to appropriate professionals, such as clinical pharmacists, 
social prescribers, physiotherapists (new workforce roles) 

 Improved care and treatment for patients, by expanding access to a wider range of 
services in a community setting and introducing different models for delivery e.g. sharing 
services; hub and spoke models  

 Reduced variation and shared learning to support quality improvement  

 Opportunities for improved integration across organisational boundaries and closer 
working relationships to support better coordination of care and services 

 Potential to support a population-based approach to system wide decision-making and 
resource allocation, drawing on primary care expertise. 

4.3.4 To support the establishment of PCNs, a national PCN contract has been introduced as a 
Directed Enhanced Service (DES). It will ensure general practice plays a leading role in 
every PCN and mean much closer working between networks and their Integrated Care 
System. The Network DES meant all Lewisham practices will enter into a new contract, 
which will provide a designated single fund through which all network resources will flow. 

4.3.5 As a DES, it will be an extension of the core GP contract rather than a separate contract. 
Under delegated commissioning, the commissioner responsibility for the contract falls to 
the CCG. The DES has three main parts:  

(i) The national Network Service Specifications. PCNs will have responsibility for 
delivering seven national service specifications set out in the contract, namely: 

 Structured medicines review and optimisation (from 2020/21) 

 Enhanced health in care homes (from 2020/21) 

 Anticipatory care (from 2020/21) 

 Personalised care (from 2020/21) 

 Supporting early cancer diagnosis (from 2020/21) 

 Cardiovascular disease prevention and diagnosis (from 2021/22) 

 Tackling neighbourhood inequalities (from 2021/22). 

(ii) The national schedule of Network Financial Entitlements. This will increase 
financial certainty.  

(iii) Supplementary Network Services. The CCG and PCNs may develop local 
schemes and add these as an agreed supplement to the Network Contract, 
supported by additional local resources. 

  

Page 18



   

5 | P a g e  

 

4.3.6 Further, the Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme entitles PCNs to access funding to 
support recruitment across five reimbursable roles as below: 

 Clinical pharmacists and social prescribing link workers (from July 2019) 

 Physician associates and physiotherapists (from April 2020) 

 Paramedics (from April 2021) 

4.3.7 The total amount that can be claimed in any given year for all roles – except social 
prescribing link workers – is 70% of actual full-time equivalent salary plus employer on-
costs (NI and pension) in respect of individual additional staff. For the social prescribing 
link worker role, PCNs are able to claim reimbursement of 100% of actual fulltime 
equivalent salary plus employer on-costs (NI and pension) plus a contribution towards 
additional costs charged by a supplier for the provision of social prescribing link worker 
services of up to £2,400 per year per whole role FTE equivalent in the service. 

4.3.8 Following extensive discussions amongst local practices, the final model in Lewisham was 
for 6 PCNs across the borough. The 6 PCNs cover 100% of the practices in Lewisham and 
so 100% of the registered population. Each PCN has a named accountable Clinical 
Director and a Network Agreement setting out the collaboration between its members.  

4.3.9 In accordance with national guidance, all 6 PCNs submitted their formal PCN DES 
applications to the CCG by the 15th May 2019 deadline. These applications were 
subsequently endorsed by the Primary Care Commissioning Committee, the Lewisham 
Health and Care Partners and the South East London STP.  

4.3.10 Formal contract variations were approved by the Primary Care Commissioning Committee 
on the 18th June 2019 and the PCN DES commenced on the 1st July 2019. 

 

Page 19



   

6 | P a g e  

 

4.3.11 The map below shows all Lewisham practices and how these have been grouped into the 6 Primary Care Networks  

 

 P
age 20



   

7 | P a g e  

 

 

 

5. Primary Care Access 

5.1 GP Extended Access Service 

5.1.1 In line with delivering the Lewisham Primary Care Strategy, the London Strategic 
Commissioning Framework, the GP Forward View and the Our Healthier South East 
London Sustainability Transformation Plan, Lewisham CCG implemented a GP Extended 
Access Service (GPEA) which commenced in April 2017.  

5.1.2 Through the GPEA service, all patients registered with a Lewisham GP have access to 
additional bookable GP and nurse appointments from 8am – 8pm, 7 days a week, including 
bank holidays.  

5.1.3 GP practices can book directly into the GPEA appointments as can NHS 111. Patients can 
also be redirected from the Lewisham Hospital Urgent Care Centre into the service to 
support demand on the front door of the hospital. 

5.1.4 The GPEA service is commissioned from OHL and is based at the University Hospital 
Lewisham (UHL) in a purpose built facility which opened in November 2017.  The UHL site 
is centrally located with good travel links. 

5.1.5 In 2017/18 25,425 appointments were delivered; in 2018/19 
29,914 appointments were delivered; in 2019/20 36,769 
appointments have been commissioned. 

5.1.6 Based on the latest validated data from November 2019, the 
service has a utilisation rate of 80% against a national target 
of 75% for 2019/20.  

5.1.7 There is however a significant proportion of patients who do 
not attend (DNA) their appointments which is impacting 
utilisation. The CCG are currently working with OHL to 
analyse the DNA data to inform targeted actions to try and 
reduce this. 

5.1.8 The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out the first 
ever inspection of the Lewisham GPEA service in March 
2019. The service was given an overall rating of ‘Good’ 
(https://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-3604667855). 

5.1.9 More information on the service can be found at https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/your-
health/Pages/GP-Extended-Access.aspx  

5.2 GP Online services 

5.2.1 Patients registered with a GP practice can access Online services. Online services allow 
patients to: 

 book, check or cancel appointments with a GP, nurse or other healthcare professional 

 order repeat prescriptions 

 see parts of their health record, including information about medicines, vaccinations and 
test results 

5.2.2 Based on the latest data from NHS England, Lewisham is currently the best performing CCG 
in London for the % of practices where more than 30% of patients have signed up to access 
Online services. 

  

Page 21

https://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-3604667855
https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/your-health/Pages/GP-Extended-Access.aspx
https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/your-health/Pages/GP-Extended-Access.aspx


   

8 | P a g e  

 

5.3 Online Consultations (Ask NHS GP app ) 

5.3.1 Lewisham CCG has commissioned OHL to develop and implement a new app, ASK NHS 
GP, as part of the national GP Forward View Online Consultations Programme. 

5.3.2 The app has been centrally funded to support practices to enhance access and improve 
patient flow. It features an interactive symptom checker which triages the patient to the 
most appropriate onward care service (self-care, GP appointment or accident and 
emergency). 

5.3.3 The ASK NHS GP app has been developed by local GPs to manage demands on practices 
in a clinically safe manner whilst improving patient experience. Once downloaded onto a 
smart device (tablet or mobile phone), the patient is asked a series of questions 
(approximately 15), which enables the app to prioritise patients into appointment slots 
based on their needs (using Advanced NICE accredited protocols) so patients that really 
need to be seen earlier will be and those with less urgent needs will be offered later 
appointments. Where the patient requires a GP appointment, the app directly links into the 
GPs EMIS clinical system and the patient is able to book an appointment without having to 
call the practice. In addition, a transcript of the triage will be filed into the EPR (electronic 
patient record) at the patient’s practice, helping to make the consultation more efficient and 
effective. 

5.3.4 The App was rolled out to Lewisham practices in two phases; 

 Phase 1 (Pilot): The implementation of the app with four practices. This phase 
commenced in February 2018 and helped inform the final operational model. 

 Phase 2 (Full implementation): Following the pilot phase and patient feedback, the app 
was offered to all Lewisham practices from October 2018. 

5.3.5 Key highlights as of 30th November 2019: 

 All 35 practices are live with the app 

 21,568 patients registered (8% of the registered Lewisham population over 
16 years old) 

 36% of activity is out of hours, reducing recourse to urgent care 

 572 patients used the Self-Care menu, thus empowered to self-manage 

 2,054 patients used the Symptom Checker menu of which 12% were 
signposted to Self-care and so did not need to book a GP appointment 

5.3.6 The focus over the next 12 months will be to continue to market the app to patients to 
increase awareness and utilisation. It is also planned to introduce video consultations 
through the app to further enhance patient experience and to rollout a web based version 
of the app (integrated in practice websites) for patients who may not have access to an app 
enabled tablet/smartphone. 

5.3.7 The work undertaken in Lewisham was shortlisted for the Primary Care Initiative of the 
Year award by the HSJ in May 2019.  

 

5.4 Pharmacy Minor Ailments Service 

5.4.1 The CCG’s locally commissioned Pharmacy First scheme provides advice, treatment and 
medicines for common ailments (e.g. Constipation, Hay fever, Sprains/strains, Head lice, 
Cold and flu, Cold sore, Mouth ulcer, Conjunctivitis, Headache, Ear wax) from local 
pharmacies. 

5.4.2 The scheme is a walk in service and all advice and recommended medication is free for 
patients who do not normally pay prescription charges for their prescriptions. 

Page 22



   

9 | P a g e  

 

5.4.3 This scheme reduces avoidable pressure on GP practices and provides patients with more 
flexible access to support across Lewisham pharmacies. 

5.4.4 In the period between April 2018 and March 2019 the service has had 17,546 interactions 
from 11,397 patients. 58% of the interactions were for children under the age of 13 and the 
main presenting symptoms were headache and temperature at 31.5%, followed by hay 
fever at 15.9%. 

5.4.5 Analysis shows that had the scheme not been in place; 

 15,480 people would have gone to their GP 

 1778 people would have purchased some form of medicine over the counter 

 259 people would have gone to A&E 

5.4.6 The scheme is currently undergoing a refresh and will be re-launched in February 2020.   

5.5 Supporting unregistered and vulnerable patients 

5.5.1 The Equalities Impact Assessment undertaken as part of the consultation on the future of 
the NHS Walk-in Centre and improving provision and access to primary care identified a 
potential impact for those who were using the Walk-in Centre as their default access to 
primary care, which included undocumented migrants. 

5.5.2 As part of the stakeholder engagement undertaken by the CCG associated with this, 
discussions were held with Doctors of the World (DOTW), a national and international 
humanitarian charity, about the numbers of people they were supporting to register with a 
GP in Lewisham. Even with the support of a DOTW advocate, vulnerable people were 
sometimes unsuccessful in registering at a GP practice. This was often because they were 
being asked for documents they did not have or asked about their immigration status 
neither of which are requirements to register. 

5.5.3 In response to these findings, an education and information session was delivered at the 
CCG led all practice Protected Learning Time (PLT) event in February 2018, to raise 
awareness of the issues. 

5.5.4 The CCG also commissioned the Lewisham Community Education Provider Network 
(CEPN) to visit all practices to undertake specific training on supporting vulnerable people 
to access primary care. The CEPN have worked with DOTW to co-design this training 
specifically for reception staff to update their knowledge of the practical aspects of 
supporting vulnerable people to overcome barriers to registration. 

5.5.5 The objectives of the training were: 

 To bridge knowledge gaps among frontline reception staff with regards to National 
Primary Care Guidance on registering people without documents or those with no fixed 
address 

 To promote uptake of the Healthy London 
Partnership (HLP) training resources 
https://www.healthylondon.org/resource/homeless-
health-elearning/ 

 To share good practice and tips from organisations 
with direct experience of registering undocumented 
migrants  

 To consider some of the cultural / language/ 
barriers which need to be overcome for people to 
register and access services  

 To encourage practices in Lewisham to visibly demonstrate their commitment to access 
for all by signing up to the DOTW Safe Surgery scheme.  

Page 23

https://www.healthylondon.org/resource/homeless-health-elearning/
https://www.healthylondon.org/resource/homeless-health-elearning/


   

10 | P a g e  

 

5.5.6  The expected outcomes were: 

 

 Increased confidence of staff to 
support patients who present who 
may be vulnerable, including 
homeless people and those without 
documentation 

 Evidence of better patient experience 
and reduction in refusal to register 
patients 

 Increased uptake of HLP online 
resources around registering 
homeless patients 

 To prompt reflection on empathy, 
putting themselves in the patients’ 
shoes and considering wider needs  

5.5.7 To date, 28 Lewisham GP Practices have taken part in an interactive training session, 
delivered at their practice. The expectation is that all practices will have completed a 
session by the 30th March 2020.  

5.5.8 Evaluations completed by staff who have attended sessions attested to increased 
confidence in supporting people without documents to register. 

5.5.9 Doctors of the World have provided information which indicated that in 2018 the 
percentage of people who they were supporting to register in Lewisham and who did not 
initially succeed had reduced from 17% to 7%.  

5.5.10 The Lewisham GP Federation, One Health Lewisham (OHL), has also been proactively 
working to support vulnerable patients, promoting the right of patients to register at a proxy 
address, and developing Safe Hubs, where mail can be left for patients to collect and 
where they can link with community and volunteer services that may be able to provide 
support (https://onehealthlewisham.co.uk/ohl-safe-hub). 

5.5.11 As of November 2019, 16 Lewisham practices had signed up to the Safe hubs scheme.  

5.5.12 OHL is also working with DOTW to develop 12 mobile clinics in Lewisham to help 
vulnerable people to register with a GP and receive immediate care.  

5.6 GP services for the Homeless population 

5.6.1 In 2016, the CCG reviewed and re-commissioned the enhanced GP support to homeless 
hostels service to continue to assist in addressing some of the challenges the homeless 
population face in accessing health care.  

5.6.2 The service is currently delivered by 2 local GP practices within Lewisham who provide 
weekly in-reach clinics to 3 homeless facilities in Lewisham for single adults aged over 18 
(Pagnall Street, Hither Green (Spring Gardens/Garden House), Honor Lea).  

5.6.3 The service aims to provide; 

 Core general practice service to 
residents at the hostels.  

 Referrals and liaisons with other health 
and homeless services 

 End of Life Care 
 Outreach Support  
 

 Medicines management adherence 
support 

 Advocacy e.g. rehousing, statutory 
benefits 

 Collaborative multiagency working 
 

Page 24

https://onehealthlewisham.co.uk/ohl-safe-hub


   

11 | P a g e  

 

5.6.4 The Rough Sleepers Pilot was commissioned in April 2018 as an 18 month pilot to deliver 
improved access to primary care for Rough sleepers in Lewisham.  

5.6.5 The pilot service was commissioned further to the consultation on the future of the NHS 
Walk-in Centre and improving provision and access to primary care where concerns were 
raised about the homeless in Deptford and New Cross and access to primary care. An 
equality impact assessment identified that there could be a gap in services for Rough 
Sleepers in Deptford and New Cross accessing GP services. A multi-agency Homeless 
Summit was held on 18th October 2017 for local partners and agencies where the CCG 
committed to developing a GP led service for the Rough Sleepers in Deptford and New 
Cross. 

5.6.6 The service operates 2 weekly drop-in clinics offering 6 hours of primary care provision to 
Rough Sleepers in Lewisham aged 18 years and over. One clinic operates from a local GP 
practice and the other is delivered as an outreach clinic located at one of the homeless 
charities.  

5.6.7 Community Waves (who deliver the Healthwatch service in Lewisham) have been 
commissioned to undertake an evaluation of all these services. The review commenced at 
the end of October 2019 with a final report due by 31st December 2019. 

5.6.8 The aim of the evaluation is to provide; 

 assurances to commissioners of current service provision; 

 develop a baseline of need for the homeless population (hostels and rough sleepers); 

 make recommendations for commissioning a consolidated model for primary care 
services to the homeless population. 

5.6.9 The CCG ran a second Whole System Homeless Summit, which was held on 
Wednesday 30th July 2019. The summit was attended by 29 stakeholders representing a 
wide range of service providers, commissioning organisations, national leads, local 
government, homeless charities and the voluntary sector. 

5.6.10 The aim of the summit was to review recent guidance issued by Healthy London 
Partnership (HLP) for London: “Health care and people who are homeless” and map 
existing service provision in Lewisham against it and to identify gaps in order to develop a 
‘whole system’ approach. This formed the basis of the group work discussions at the 
summit. 

5.6.11 Eligibility, population/demography segmentation and a shared understanding of services 
were common themes identified from the group discussions. 

5.6.12 Stakeholders committed to the following next steps; 

 Develop a report of group findings and disseminate to stakeholders to ensure that there 
is a shared understanding; 

 Outline the recommendations to the Health & Wellbeing board at a system level as 
opposed to an individual level (scheduled March 2020). 

5.6.13 The Health & Homelessness Advisor, Rough Sleeping Initiative, Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government, who attended our summit has commended the CCG 
on its approach and will using the CCGs programme as best practice. 

5.7 Primary care interpreting and translation services  

5.7.1 Lewisham CCG is the lead commissioner for primary care interpreting and translation 
services across Lewisham, Southwark and Lambeth. 

5.7.2 Between October 2018 and March 2019, Lewisham, Southwark and Lambeth CCGs 
undertook a review of the service including an extensive stakeholder engagement exercise 

Page 25



   

12 | P a g e  

 

in order to gain an understanding of experiences of the current service and to inform future 
commissioning intentions.     

5.7.3 Findings from this engagement have helped the CCG develop a new service model which, 
following a procurement exercise, has led to the appointment of a new service provider, DA 
Languages Ltd, who will commence delivery of the new service from the 1st April 2020.   

5.7.4 For more information on the engagement undertaken and key findings please see 
https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/Pages/Review-of-interpreting-and-
translation-service.aspx  

 

6. Patient Experience 

6.1 GP Patient Survey 2019 

6.1.1 The GP Patient Survey is an England-wide survey, providing practice-level data about 
patients’ experiences of their GP practices. The survey is run by Ipsos MORI on behalf of 
NHS England. Patients accessing GP practices are sent a paper survey in the post, also 
with the option of completing the survey online or via telephone, and once returned the 
results are analysed and published on www.gp-patient.co.uk. 

6.1.2 The data presented below is based on the July 2019 GP Patient Survey publication. In 
contrast to previous years when the survey was carried out in January and July, the GP 
Patient Survey now consists of a single wave carried out annually, between January to 
March.  

6.1.3 The GP Patient Survey was altered in 2018 to expand the cohort and include patients aged 
16 and 17. Therefore recent data cannot be directly compared with earlier survey 
responses prior to 2018. However, the trends seen from 2018 into 2019 reflect those seen 
from 2012 to 2017. 

6.1.4 16,506 questionnaires were sent out as part of the 2019 GP Patient Survey for Lewisham 
and 3,962 were returned completed which represents a response rate of 24%. This is 
below the overall national response rate to the survey of 33.1%. 

6.1.5 The GP Patient Survey measures patients’ experiences across a range of topics including: 

 Making an appointment  

 Perceptions of care at appointments 

 Overall experience  

 Practice opening hours 

 Services when GP practices are closed 

6.1.6 The limitations of the survey should be noted (sample sizes at practice level are relatively 
small and no qualitative data is included) but the survey data can be triangulated with other 
sources of feedback, such as Patient Participation Groups (PPG), NHS Choices and the 
Friends and Family Test to develop a fuller picture of patients’ experience, enabling the 
identification of best practice and areas for potential improvement. 

6.1.7 Summary of 2019 GP Patient Survey Results for Lewisham CCG 

6.1.8 The results show that Lewisham CCG at an aggregate level is performing slightly below the 
national average across the majority of questions in the survey. 

6.1.9 Some of the key findings include: 

 80% of patients in Lewisham said their experience of their GP practice was ‘good’ - 3% 
below the national average. 

Page 26

https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/Pages/Review-of-interpreting-and-translation-service.aspx
https://www.lewishamccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/Pages/Review-of-interpreting-and-translation-service.aspx
http://www.gp-patient.co.uk/


   

13 | P a g e  

 

 61% said it was easy or fairly easy to get through to their GP practice on the phone - 7% 
below the national average. 

 87% said that they found their GP receptionists helpful - 2% below the national average. 

 74% said that their practice website was easy to use - 3% below the national average. 

 Lewisham was above the national average for awareness of online services offered at 
GP practices and for the % of patients who had booked an online appointment/accessed 
their medical record online in the last 12 months.  

 64% said that they were offered a choice of appointment at their last contact - 2% higher 
than the national average. 

 69% said that they were satisfied with the type of appointment they were offered - 5% 
below the national average. 

 82% felt that their mental health needs were recognised and understood by their GP - 
4% below the national average. 

 71% felt that they got enough support from local services to help them manage their 
health conditions - 7% below the national average. 

 92% said that they had confidence and trust in staff providing services when their GP 
practice was closed - 1% above the national average. 

6.1.10 It should be noted however that London always tends to show slightly less satisfaction 
ratings compared to the national picture.  

6.1.11 Table 1 below shows a comparison between the 2018 and 2019 GP Patient Survey results 
for Lewisham CCG at an aggregate level. There is an overall slight downward trend in most 
of the areas compared to 2018. 

 

GP Patient Survey Areas CCG Average 
2018 (%) 

CCG Average 
2019 (%) 

National Average 
2019 (%) 

Overall experience 81 80 83 

Getting through on the phone 63 61 68 

Helpfulness of receptionists 88 87 89 

Ease of use of online services 74 74 77 

Choice of appointment 65 64 62 

Satisfaction with appointment 
offered 

71 69 74 

Overall experience of making an 
appointment 

65 62 67 

Mental health needs recognised 
and understood 

84 82 86 

Support with managing health 
conditions 

71 71 78 

Satisfaction with appointment 
times 

64 60 65 

Time taken to receive care or 
advice when GP practice is 
closed 

61 58 66 

Confidence and trust in staff 
providing services when GP 
practice is closed 

91 92 91 

Overall experience of services 
when GP practice is closed 

65 68 69 

Page 27



   

14 | P a g e  

 

6.1.12 The following 9 practices scored above the CCG average in all areas of the 2019 GP 
Patient Survey: 

 Oakview Family Practice 
 Nightingale Surgery 
 Lee Road Surgery 
 Clifton Rise Surgery 
 Bellingham Green Practice 

 Deptford Medical Centre 
 Downham Family Practice 
 The Vale Medical Practice 
 Woolstone Practice 
 

6.1.13 These practices have been contacted to understand what systems and processes they 
have in place that might be supporting their positive GP Patient Survey results. This 
information will be collated and shared with all as examples of best practice. 

6.2 Friends and Family Test 

6.2.1 The NHS Friends and Family Test (FFT) is a tool for patients to give feedback about their 
experience of services. A simple question asks how likely, on a scale ranging from: 
extremely likely to extremely unlikely, a person is to recommend the service to a friend or 
family member if they needed similar care or treatment.  

6.2.2 The question format includes the opportunity to provide more detail of the person’s 
experience through a free text comment box which provides a rich source of patient 
feedback that can be used locally to highlight and address concerns much faster than more 
traditional survey methods. The results can be used by practices to track progress over 
time. 

6.2.3 The three key contractual requirements for GP practices are; 

(i) To make the opportunity to provide feedback through the FFT available to all 
patients at any time 

(ii) To submit FFT data to the NHS England each month; and 

(iii) To publish the data locally. 

6.2.4 Based on FFT date for October 2019, responses across practices ranged from 65% to 
100% of patients who would recommend their GP practice service to a friend or family 
member if they needed similar care or treatment.   

6.2.5 The CCG is working with the Local Medical Committee (LMC) to support practices where 
FFT data is not regularly submitted, being clear that this is a contractual requirement. 

6.2.6 It should also be noted that there are planned changes to the Friends and Family Test from 
April 2020. The main change is that the new question of “Overall, how was your experience 
of our service?” will be used for all settings with the following set of responses: 

 Very good 

 Good 

 Neither good nor poor 

 Poor 

 Very poor 

 Don’t know 

6.2.7 Further information is available at https://www.england.nhs.uk/fft/fft-guidance/revised-fft-
guidance/ 

  

Page 28

https://www.england.nhs.uk/fft/fft-guidance/revised-fft-guidance/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/fft/fft-guidance/revised-fft-guidance/


   

15 | P a g e  

 

7. Primary Care Quality Improvement Approach  

7.1 In September 2019 the CCG established a primary care quality improvement task and finish 
group to carry out a review of the GP Patient Survey and other primary care quality 
indicators. The group was made up of clinicians, quality leads, Public Health, CCG 
Governing Body lay members and the Local Medical Committee. Healthwatch Lewisham 
was also engaged as it was acknowledged that they are a source of useful direct patient 
feedback. 

7.2 The group considered and triangulated the GP Patient Survey data with other feedback 
sources to develop a fuller picture of quality markers and patient experience and used it to 
identify opportunities for improvements and highlight best practice. The other sources of 
information included: 

 Friends and Family Test scores 

 Recent CQC inspection reports 

 NHS Choices ratings 

7.3 The group looked at areas of good practice and how learning could be collated and 
disseminated to all practices.  

7.4 Furthermore the group agreed that a more targeted approach to quality improvement would 
be beneficial and identified eight practices for support that were outliers based on the 
information reviewed.  

7.5 The main focus for support was to address the issue of getting through on the phone and 
managing demand on practices. 

7.6 The 8 practices identified for targeted support were; 

 Queens Road Partnership 

 Hillyfields Medical Centre 

 Brockley Road Surgery 

 Wells Park Practice 

 New Cross Health Centre 

 St Johns Medical Centre 

 Sydenham Green Group Practice 

 Woodlands Health Centre. 

7.7 The CCG visited the 8 practices and identified and agreed how they could be supported to 
address the challenges identified, improve quality and reduce variation. 

7.8 The identified practices were also encouraged and supported to apply for 2019/20 national 
General Practice Resilience funding. 

7.9 The General Practice Resilience Programme is part of the General Practice Forward View 
and is intended to deliver support that will help practices to become more sustainable and 
resilient, better placed to tackle the challenges they face now and into the future, and secure 
continuing high quality care for patients. 

7.10 Lewisham were allocated £44,152 for General Practice Resilience funding in 2019/20. 

7.11 All 8 identified practices submitted applications for General Practice Resilience funding 
alongside 9 other practices. 

7.12 The assessment of applications was undertaken in-house by Lewisham CCG with peer 
review by the Local Medical Committee and the CCG Governing Body lay member for public 
engagement and reported back to the Primary Care Commissioning Committee.  

Page 29



   

16 | P a g e  

 

7.13 A summary of 2019/20 General Practice Resilience funding allocations is shown below: 

GP Practice Support Required Funding 
Allocation 

Lewisham Care 
Partnership (Modern 
Hill/Hilly Fields/Brockley 
Road/Honor Oak/St 
Johns/Belmont Hill) 

Professional review of telephony hardware and 
software in the context of moving to a centralised 
call centre arrangement across the ‘super 
partnership’. 

£6,000.00 

Modality Lewisham 
Division  
(Jenner HC/South 
Lewisham Group 
Practice/Bellingham 
Green Surgery) 

Funding support for non-GP staff to attend the 
2020 Modality Talent Management and 
Leadership course.  

£6,000.00 

New Cross Health 
Centre 

Funding support for ‘Understanding Policies and 
Procedures’ training for all staff. This would 
ensure staff are prepared for CQC inspections. 
Backfill support to trial longer appointments/group 
consultations for patients with Long Term 
Conditions.   

 
£4,680.00 

Nightingale Surgery Assistance with clinical searches, Scriptswitch 
and repeat dispensing. 

N/A – 
support to 

be provided 
through 
existing 

CCG 
resources 

Novum Health 
Partnership 

Funding support for Human Resources training 
and coaching.  
Support for a facilitated away day for partners and 
managers to further integrate and streamline 
processes following the merger with Baring Road 
Medical Centre.  

£3,000.00 

Oakview Family Practice Support to develop and implement a robust 
succession plan which will ensure continued 
quality service provision for patients. 

£5,000.00 

Queens Road 
Partnership 

Bespoke software to support the monitoring of 
high risk drugs and clinical safety. 
Backfill support to analyse an audit carried out to 
better understand the impact of appointments on 
clinicians’ time.  

 
£3,600.00 

Sydenham Green Group 
Practice 

Funding support to purchase and implement a 
new telephone system.  

£9,600.00 

Wells Park Practice Funding support to conduct a piece of work to 
identify and analyse frequent callers and agree a 
mechanism of supporting them.  

£1,035 

Woodlands Health 
Centre 

Funding support to purchase a self-test height 
and weight monitor to improve practice efficiency 
and patient experience. 

£5,237.00 

7.14 The CCG will now monitor improvements and will be looking to the 2020 GP Patient Survey 
data which is scheduled to be published in July 2020. Additionally, Healthwatch Lewisham 
have agreed to carry out an interim assessment of impact through local patient engagement 
prior to the publication of the next GP Patient Survey data.  

Page 30



   

17 | P a g e  

 

 

8. Partnership working 

8.1 The CCG holds bimonthly meetings with CQC colleagues; this ensures that information and 
intelligence is shared appropriately and in a timely manner. It is also working closely with the 
CQC as they roll out the new Annual Regulatory Review Process to identify practices where 
the quality of care may have changed significantly since the last rated inspection.    

8.2 The CCG has an established and effective working relationship with Lewisham Healthwatch 
and meets on a quarterly basis to share information and intelligence. Both parties ensure 
that primary care work streams are carefully aligned. Healthwatch have previously 
successfully supported the CCG to get messages out to the general public about services 
such as the GP Extended Access service and GP online services. 

8.3 Additionally, the CCG has a very good working relationship with the Local Medical 
Committee (LMC). Both organisations worked closely together and provided options and 
support to practices that have recently had adverse CQC inspections and we also work 
jointly when interpreting local implementation of national GP contract requirements.  

 

9. Financial Implications  

9.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.  

 

10. Legal Implications  

10.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.  

 

11. Crime and Disorder Implications  

11.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report.  

 

12. Equalities Implications  

12.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report, however addressing 
health inequalities is a key deliverable of the CCG and Equalities Impact Assessments are 
undertaken where indicated as part of business as usual processes when considering any 
primary care services/changes.  

 

13. Environmental Implications  

13.1 There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report. 

 

14. Background documents 

14.1 Our Healthier South East London Sustainability & Transformation Plan. 

Following publication of the NHS Five Year Forward view, all NHS regions in England are 
required to work together and with their local councils to produce a Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) for local services. This work is being jointly carried out by south 
east London Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), hospitals, community health services 
and mental health trusts, with the support of local councils and members of the public. 

Link: http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/ 

 

Page 31

http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/


   

18 | P a g e  

 

14.2 NHS GP Forward View. 

The General Practice Forward View, published in April 2016, commits to an extra £2.4 billion 
a year to support general practice services by 2020/21. It will improve patient care and 
access, and invest in new ways of providing primary care. 

Link: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf 

14.3 The NHS Long Term Plan 

The NHS Long Term Plan is a new plan for the NHS to improve the quality of patient care 
and health outcomes. It sets out how the £20.5 billion budget settlement for the NHS, 
announced by the Prime Minister in summer 2018, will be spent over the next 5 years. 

Link: https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/nhs-long-term-plan-
version-1.2.pdf 

14.4 Investment and evolution: A five-year framework for GP contract reform to implement The 
NHS Long Term Plan 

This agreement between NHS England and the BMA General Practitioners Committee 
(GPC) in England, and supported by Government, translates commitments in The NHS Long 
Term Plan into a five-year framework for the GP services contract.  

Link: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/gp-contract-2019.pdf  

 

15. Contact/s 

 Ashley O’Shaughnessy, Deputy Director of Primary Care, NHS Lewisham CCG 
 Chima Olugh, Primary Care Commissioning Manager, NHS Lewisham CCG 
 Dr Jacky McLeod, Senior Clinical Director & Primary Care Lead, NHS Lewisham CCG 
 

Page 32

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/nhs-long-term-plan-version-1.2.pdf
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/nhs-long-term-plan-version-1.2.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/gp-contract-2019.pdf


 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

Report title: Select Committee work programme report 

Date: 15 January 2020 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: Not applicable 

Contributors: John Bardens, Scrutiny Manager 

Outline and recommendations 

To advise members of the committee’s work programme for the 2019/20 municipal year 
and to agree the agenda items for the next meeting. 

The Committee is asked to: 

 consider the work programme attached at appendix B and discuss any issues 
arising from the programme. 

 consider the items scheduled for the next meeting and specify the information the 
committee requires to achieve its desired outcomes. 

 review the forthcoming key decisions set out in appendix C and consider any items 

for further scrutiny. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

 Healthier Communities Select Committee (HCSC) work programme 2019/20 agreed 
by committee on 4th April 2019 

 HCSC work programme 2019/20 agreed by Business Panel on 7th May 2019 

 HCSC work programme 2019/20 reviewed at committee meetings 14th May 2019; 
25th June 2019; 3rd September 2019; 8th October 2019; 2nd December 2019. 

1. Summary 

1.1. The committee drew up a draft work programme at the beginning of the municipal year 
for submission to the Business Panel for consideration.  

1.2. The Business Panel considered the proposed work programmes of each committee on 
7 May 2019 and agreed a co-ordinated overview and scrutiny work programme.  

1.3. The work programme can, however, be reviewed at each select committee meeting to 
take account of changing priorities. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. The Committee is asked to:  

 consider the work programme attached at appendix B and discuss any issues 
arising from the programme  

 consider the items scheduled for the next meeting – and specify the information the 
committee requires to achieve its desired outcomes  

 review the forthcoming key decisions set out in appendix C and consider any items 
for further scrutiny  

3. Work programme 

3.1. The work programme for 2019/20 was agreed at the 4th April meeting. 

3.2. Members are asked to consider if any urgent issues have arisen that require scrutiny 
and if any items should be removed from the work programme.  

3.3. Any additional items should be considered against the prioritisation process before 
being added to the work programme (see flow chart below).  

3.4. The committee’s work programme needs to be achievable in terms of the meeting time 
available. If the committee agrees to add additional items, members will also need to 
consider which lower-priority items should be removed to create sufficient capacity. 

 

 

 

Page 34

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

 

 

Page 35

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

3.5. Items within the committee’s work programme should be linked to the priorities of the 
Council’s Corporate Strategy.  

3.6. The Council’s Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022 was approved at full council in 
February 2019.  

3.7. The strategic priorities of the Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022 are: 

1. Open Lewisham - Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all, where 
we celebrate the diversity that strengthens us. 

2. Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is secure 
and affordable. 

3. Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has 
access to an outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support 
they need to keep them safe, well and able to achieve their full potential. 

4. Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality 
job opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive 
local economy. 

5. Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - Ensuring 
everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and support 
services they need. 

6. Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and 
benefits from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our 
local environment. 

7. Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure living 
here as we work together towards a borough free from the fear of crime. 

 

4. The next meeting  

4.1. The following items are scheduled for the next meeting on 18th March 2020. 

4.2. The committee is asked to specify the information and analysis it requires for each 
item, based on the outcomes it would like to achieve, so that officers are clear about 
what information they need to provide. 

Agenda item Review type Relevant Corporate Priority Priority 

Lewisham People’s 
Parliament  

Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

Medium 

Delivery of the 
Lewisham Health & 
Wellbeing priorities 

Standard item 
Delivering and defending: 

health, social care and 
support 

High 

Adult Learning 
Lewisham annual 

report 
Standard item 

Delivering and defending: 
health, social care and 

support 
Medium 

 

Page 36

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/open-lewisham
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/tackling-the-housing-crisis
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/giving-children-and-young-people-the-best-start-in-life
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-an-inclusive-local-economy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/making-lewisham-greener
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-safer-communities
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

5. Referrals 

5.1. Below is a tracker of the referrals the committee has made in this municipal year: 

Referral title Date of referral 
Date considered 

by Mayor & 
Cabinet 

Response due at 
committee 

BAME mental health 
inequalities 

14 May 2019 5 June 2019 3 September 2019 

Older adults day 
activities and services 

consultation 
14 May 2019 5 June 2019 n/a 

BAME mental health 
inequalities 

17 July 2019 14 November 2019 2 December 2019 

Recommissioning of 
building-based day 

services for older adults 
8 October 2019 30 October 2019 2 December 2019 

Availability of adult 
safeguarding 
information 

2 December 2019 11 December 2019 March 2020 

 

6. Information items 

6.1. Some potential work programme items might be low priority and may only require a 
briefing report for information to be produced for the committee to note and will not 
need to be considered at a formal committee meeting. 

6.2. Below is a tracker of the information items received by the committee: 

 

Item Date received 

Stakeholder letter in response to CQC report on The Queens 
Road Partnership 

1 May 2019 

King’s College NHS Foundation Trust  
CQC inspection report  

(and Lewisham CCG response) 
13 June 2019 

Page 37

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5479&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=315&MId=5519&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=315&MId=5519&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5643&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5643&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5643&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5645&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5645&Ver=4
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=5645&Ver=4


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust  
quality account 2018-19 

17 June 2019 

Healthwatch Lewisham 2018/19 Annual Report 4 July 2019 

Lewisham CCG, Review of the primary care Interpreting and 
Translation Service across Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham 

8 July 2019 

Healthwatch Lewisham, Assessing Complaints Information GP 
Websites 

10 July 2019 

South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust  
CQC inspection report  

31 July 2019 

State of Adult Social Care in London 2019 - London Councils 28 August 2019 

Healthwatch Lewisham’s engagement on the NHS Long Term 
Plan 

4 September 2019 

Healthwatch Lewisham, Intelligence Report (February to July 
2019) 

11 October 2019 

Letter to the London Regional Director of NHS Improvement 
from the Chair of the southeast London Joint Health Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) regarding south-east London 
CCG merger application. 

11 October 2019 

Institute of Health Visiting (iHV), ‘Health Visiting in England: A 
Vision for the Future’ (10th October 2019) 

14 October 2019 

Local Authority Health Profiles, Public Health England - 
Lewisham. 

6 November 2019 

 

 

 

7. Financial implications  

7.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme will have 
financial implications and these will need to be considered as part of the reports on 
those items 

Page 38

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://www.healthwatchlewisham.co.uk/what-we-do/our-reports/
https://ihv.org.uk/news-and-views/news/ihv-launches-health-visiting-in-england-a-vision-for-the-future/
https://ihv.org.uk/news-and-views/news/ihv-launches-health-visiting-in-england-a-vision-for-the-future/
file:///C:/Users/Bardej/Downloads/E09000023.html


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

8. Legal implications 

8.1. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

9. Equalities implications 

9.1. Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

9.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

9.3. There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme and all 
activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due consideration to 
this. 

10. Climate change and environmental implications 

10.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work 
programme may have climate change implications and these will need to be 
considered as part of the reports on those items. 

11. Crime and disorder implications 

11.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 
the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme may 
have crime and disorder implications and these will need to be considered as part of 
the reports on those items. 

12. Health and wellbeing implications  

12.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme may 
have health and wellbeing implications and these will need to be considered as part of 
the reports on those items. 

13. Report author and contact 

13.1. If you have any questions about this report please contact: John Bardens, 020 8314 
9976 john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk.   

Page 39

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Healthier Communities Select Committee work programme 2019/20

Item Type Priority Delivery 04-Apr 14-May 25-Jun 03-Sep 08-Oct 02-Dec 15-Jan 18-Mar

Budget cuts proposals Standard item High Sep

Confirmation of Chair and Vice 

Chair
Constitutional req High Apr

Leisure centre contracts
Performance 

monitoring
High Apr

Work programme 2019-20 Constitutional req High Apr

BAME mental health access Standard item High May

South London and Maudsley NHS 

Foundation Trust quality account

Performance 

monitoring
High May

Older Adults Day Activities and 

Day Services
Standard item High May

Leisure centre contracts
Performance 

monitoring
High May

Mental Health Alliance Standard item High Jun

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS 

Trust (LGT) CQC inspection

Performance 

monitoring
High Jun

Primary care CQC inspections 

update

Performance 

monitoring
High Jun

Early help review Information item High Jun

Asset-based approach to adult 

social care 
Standard item High Sep

Public health grant cuts Standard item High Oct

CCG system reform Standard item High Oct

Pathology services update Standard item High Oct

Adult safeguarding annual report
Performance 

monitoring
High Dec

Lewisham hospital winter 

pressures

Performance 

monitoring
High Dec

Primary Care Changes Standard item High Jan

NHS charges for overseas visitors Standard item High Jan

Delivery of the Lewisham Health & 

Wellbeing priorities

Performance 

monitoring
High Mar

Adult Learning Lewisham annual 

report

Performance 

monitoring
High Mar

Lewisham People’s Parliament Standard item High Mar

Item completed

Item on-going 1) 5)

Item outstanding 2) 6)

Proposed timeframe 3) 7)

Item added 4) 8)

Meetings

Tue 25th June 2019

Tue 3rd Sept 2019

Tue 8th October 2019

Mon 2nd December 2019

Wed 15th January 2020

Wed 18th March 2020

Thu 4th April 2019

Tue 14th May 2019

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan January 2020 - April 2020 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent toKevin Flaherty 0208 3149327, the Local Democracy Officer, 
at the Council Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 43



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

November 2019 
 

Improvement Work Social Care 
Software Systems (LiquidLogic 
Adults - LAS & Childrens LCs) 
 

17/12/19 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Contract Award for Extra Care 
Services at Conrad Court 
(Notting Hill Genesis) 
 

17/12/19 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

August 2019 
 

Consultation: Proposal to 
Transfer Management of 5 
Community Centres to 
Lewisham Homes 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Jonathan Slater, Cabinet 
Member for Community 
Sector 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Preferred Tender for Travel and 
Transport Programme 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Building for Lewisham New 
Homes Programme parts 1 & 2 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 

 
  

 

P
age 44



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

October 2019 
 

State of the Highways 
Infrasructure and Update on 
Asset Management Strategy 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Achilles Street Estate 
Regeneration Ballot Results 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Parking Policy Update 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Disposal of former Wide 
Horizon Sites in Wales & Kent' 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Acquisition of land at Pool 
Court. parts 1 & 2 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 

 
  

 P
age 45



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

October 2019 
 

Private Sector Housing 
Borough-wide Licensing 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

June 2019 
 

Adopting a Residents Charter 
for Lewisham 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Lewisham Draft Housing 
Strategy 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Housing Strategy and 
Homelessness Strategy 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

P
age 46



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

October 2019 
 

Precision Manufactured 
Housing (PMH) Procurement 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Highway Contract Tendering 
strategy for 2021 award 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 
 

Approval for the procurement 
of lake operations for 
Beckenham Place Park 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 
 

Setting the Council tax Base 
NNDR Tax Base & Discounts 
for Second Homes and Empty 
Homes 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Permission to tender the 
Refugee Resettlement Support 
Service 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 

 
  

 

P
age 47



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

December 2020 
 

Beckenham Place Park 
Procurement of a Lake 
Swimming Operator 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Creekside Acquisition 
Opportunity 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Addey & Stanhope School 
Instrument of Government 
 

15/01/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

NHS Commissioning 
Arrangements in Lewisham 
 

22/01/20 
Council 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor and 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

P
age 48



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

November 2019 
 

Setting the Council tax Base 
NNDR Tax Base & Discounts 
for Second Homes and Empty 
Homes 
 

22/01/20 
Council 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Friendship Agreement Pokhara 
 

22/01/20 
Council 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Variation to Mayoral Scheme of 
delegation 
 

22/01/20 
Council 
 

Kath Nicholson, Head of 
Law and Mayor Damien 
Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Budget 2020-21 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Youth Services Contract Award 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Mayow Road Supported Living 
Service Parts 1 & 2 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 

 
  

 

P
age 49



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

and Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

October 2019 
 

PLACE/Ladywell parts 1 & 2 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 
 

Supported Accommodation 
Permitted Contract Extension 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Contract Award for Stage 2 of 
Greenvale School Expansion 
Project 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance and 
Children's Services 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 
 

Approach to Boroughwide pot 
of Neighbourhood Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport (job share) 

 
  

 

P
age 50



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

May 2019 
 

Performance Monitoring 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Renewal of Social Care 
software systems 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Renewal of revenue and 
benefits software systems 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 
 

Learning Disability Framework 
- Award of call off contracts 
 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Leisure Centre Admission 
Charges 

05/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 

 
  

 P
age 51



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  Services and Councillor 
Andre Bourne, Cabinet 
member for Culture, Jobs 
and Skills (job share) 
 

October 2019 
 

Budget Update 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Precision Manufactured 
Housing (PMH) Procurement 
Process Outcome and Decision 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Old Town Hall works - 
permission to tender 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Future Provision of Home Care 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Draft Local Plan 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 

 
  

 

P
age 52



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

December 2020 
 

Community Wealth Building 
and Inclusive Growth Strategy 
Update 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Jobs and Skills 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Achilles Street Estate Land 
Assembly Parts 1 & 2 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Community Energy Fund grant 
awards 
 

12/02/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Jonathan Slater, Cabinet 
Member for Community 
Sector 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Budget 2020-21 
 

26/02/20 
Council 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Lewisham Climate Emergency 
Action Plan 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Sophie 

 
  

 

P
age 53



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

October 2019 
 

Air Quality Action Plan 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Local Plan New Cross Gate 
SPD and Surrey Canl SPD 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Renewal of Oracle Licensing 
arrangements 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Corporate Energy Contract 
Strategy 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 Post consultation 11/03/20 Kevin Sheehan,   

P
age 54



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 recommendation of additions 
of new buildings to Local List 
 

Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

  

December 2020 Approval of the draft Lewisham 
Local Plan for public 
consultation 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Approval of the Local 
Development Scheme (update) 
 

11/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

October 2019 
 

Adoption of the Catford 
Regeneration Masterplan 
Framework 
 

25/03/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Approval of the draft Lewisham 
Local Plan for public 
consultation 
 

01/04/20 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Approval of the Local 
Development Scheme (update) 
 

01/04/20 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 Approval to appoint operator 29/04/20 Kevin Sheehan,   

P
age 55



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 for concessions contract at the 
lake, Beckenham Place Park 
 

Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Executive Director for 
Housing, Regeneration & 
Environment and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport (job share) 
 

  

November 2019 
 

Corporate Equalities Scheme 
 

29/04/20 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Jonathan 
Slater, Cabinet Member 
for Community Sector 
 

 
  

 

P
age 56



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2019
	2 Declarations of interest
	4 Primary care development
	04 CCG Primary Care update - 150120

	6 Select Committee work programme
	06 Appendix B - work programme - 150120
	06 Appendix C - Key Decision Plan - 150120


